Thomas E. Thorne

Coming to William and Mary in 1940 to teach painting
in the fine arts department (which then included painting,
sculpture, architecture, drama, and music), Tom Thorne
observed many changes in that department and in the college
at large until his retirement in 1975. He spoke freely of
these in this interview, taped shortly after his retirement.

Mr. Thorne added a few notes of explanation to the fol=-

lowing typescript.
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Thomas E. Thorne

October 16, 1975 Wit amsbu-ptj) Va |
Williams: What was the state of the fine arts department when you
came in 19407
rne: 7 in 1 t t t . 1
Thorne Wi’n 91;% he department was three years o % anéF

'the sculptor, Mr. Edwin Rust, was the head of the depart-

the Hopmer]
men ~axd Mr. Leslie Cheek, founaer and head of the depart— 3
© A Bultipoematsen,
mentyhad left to become ’ohe director of a museum 9@ Balti oz}m A /zﬁ J

more. Miss Hunt, one of the original fine arts department {hembers]
who had been on the campus much earlier but more_-/br/ﬁess

« 4 C o - - 3

l.q\sel‘y' assoclated with the English depar‘cment)ms@ was

the director of the theater. The new people that they

wWese
brougnt 1n«m the designer, Miss Fra:nkel a technician, /

" Arohrbeot, e dM// ,&/{’

Mr. Arthur Ross, Mr. Cheek acted as the seurptor, Mr.
Leonard Haber acted as the painter. Mr. Haber left the

et -~
year before I came in 1940 -~ he left 4w the end of '39-and
2 A

Miss Frankel left at the same time .so there had to be new

)

appmnbmenbs}f\s;z taem. Mr, Cheek left a little bit earllex- Eo
(doverTY)
@i@ Mr. Lloyd?@wéy was the architect; Mhls job, like all

of us, was & not only teach courses in the history of ar-

and 5D 4 24

chitecture, in the different arts A--theater, music -~ but

to alsoc Agbe“ﬁ’ a7\ archltectw-,in other words, to do some
designing on his oIy e thret-Has—-one—ofthe--i-deasy The music
people were involved with the department, particularly in the

He ¢
big basic course,which was called Fine Arts 200-em#t in small

print it was the equivalent of English 200) which didn't work out



j quite that way.\% we had at the time ﬁ about sixty people taking
the course7and the course was givén. in ‘two seg;i_ggs sf,;ssj / @;a;j , M)
cause the seating capacity was only forty in the,\roomﬂin
the old fine arts building. The problems of giving a
survey course of all the arts, particularly ¥&- adding
theater and mus}c éto the major visual arts, was rezally astro-
nomical.\“%nw%g/ a}é@ok%y one)of the few colleges in the
country"j that attempted it. On the other han@,f/the people who
had been through the course anol% 50 to spealg%id their home-
worwfelt that they got a great deal out of i’@ fgut it was
a real problem because each person teaching in the class
had to lecture and was responsible for grading his section
of the course,which meant that when we had quiz;as:tsand whene
:we*ﬁz%examinations/{% everybod;ﬁ,sort o% did their paribamﬁﬁz
;L'b was quite a Jjob to coordinate. We invited people from out
/of the department -- Dr. George Ryan in the classics, people
from the history{ Dr. Bruce McCully was one of those invi.ted>
-~ and they gave background lectures for each of the major
periods of art history. “a& I'm tadlking about the arts
in the \l\/@ﬁr\eﬁm\ sense: /”Ihe igea of all the arts -- music,
theater, dance -‘36\16 didn't actually do as much with dance,but
it was involved in the theatex)% architectwei\msiulptuzéwm > :

b}

villped 4 The 12T

The music people remalned more or less separate from us. Allan /

Sly, who was & l.certiste of the Royal Academy of Music in Lon-

don)was presumebly the senior member of ib&-musmie;amw

ot the e martmert,
the music section;( But a2 person who majored in that had to



411/: We

major in fine artgﬁﬁﬁﬁmgea'had five basic history coursescﬁu¢4

\W@Qha\vthe big survey course, Fine Arts 200, whlch surveyed

Eil” M
P& ach member & a survey

the world p1u§><)ef
history of art of their particular field: a history of paini~
ing, a history of architecture, a history of sculpture, a
history of music, agg a history of theater. -Aw=d any major
in the deparitment had tc take at least three out ;f the

five hlstorle§) Wél\ you could get along Wlth taking

e
e

architecture, palntlng, aﬁdmgga&pture but you colild get
\-«

architecture, aad’palnulnb and then t“KENmas;smon you.could

™
-

gﬁéﬁéginx.nw,mmu51s,”amd-«hea%@rj ‘fou had a choice. We had

only fifteen majors in 19hO)and that meant that the faculty
and student relationships were very close and very personal ,
which was, I think, a very wonderful th;gg;?rather expensive
thing to operate)but it was a very nice thing.qiThe theater was

the keystone)according t0 Mr. Cheek. and Leslie was very much

N
interested in the i1dea that the theater had within its frame-
work architecture im-bthe.setiingypainting in-the-setiing,

vaﬂ( sculpture in the settings, and then you had the acting withi.
bhe-theater and the musiiéfha%wweu%éwgegg For instance, at
least one of the productions each year seemed to have been a
musical)and since??e%wanted to indoctrinate Williamsburg into
the musical theater with some easg&fhey usually chose Gilbert
and Sullivan. Nothing complicated. Once and awhile they'd

do something rather spectacular?bﬁ%<;ost of the time it was

" ", .
some classic:znmusical even§¥\but meéﬁ??ﬁfZngiime it was Gil~



Williams:

Thorne:

bert and Sulllvan =27 UhlS gave everybody a very enjoyable

t1me€)§6ﬁ9ﬁ§§j There were four plays a year and—agoin, the

painter was asked to design the posters -~ that was part of

—

my job to design posterﬁqand it was rather strenuous at
TN |
times along with doing youqiwork b&%'&)@ﬂsq‘workfin the
J i)
theater. I remember one time we had some dissension about

the work in the theater. The scene designer, Miss Gorman
£ 3 s

was working very hard on costumes,and she just didn't have

)
too much time to do the proper detailed drawings of the stage
set, so she turned over the drawings 742withoutxany scale(/fhe
measurements were very rougﬂ)and the result was that she and

Mr. Ross were not feeling tod)happy about Bach other. We had

the most horrible-looking setting for Mary of Scotlandsd She

had indicated that she wanted a "warm pink" to play over the
stone structure for the background. The'warm pink" turned out
and the result was that I

took my whole painting class over, and we s€fndth§yhole afternoon

to be the brightest pink 1mag1nable

OO
before the play opened that aight at e:gh%~e*c&e§k with brushes

Hown |

sphattering brown paint over this bright pink to try to tone 1t&
Evertwslly
Well, it was all ironed out. 1Bas:vaiiﬁ%—mr. Ross and Miss

Gorman left. She went on to another Jdb and he went on tojéﬁﬁw
désign in New York Cltyé;;z ;i¢&04°‘ef>

You said that theater was the kex:fﬁone of this -~ but Miss
Hunt wasn't the keystone, Leslie Cheek was. Is that correct?

S
Leslie Cheek was the head of the department§§333 Hunt said -tka¥s



Leslie was very strange in a way, very human. Whenever he
wanted something very special he would invite the fine arts
people all in to the luncheon room in thégid building around
a round table and serve them sherry. Then he would announce
what he Wantedqmyﬂhd usually it was double dutysyso—to-speafe
No, Miss Hunt was the director of the theater. She did théﬂ:>
| _put Leslie was the one who had a great deal of say
aﬁout the choosing of the playgaﬁgyit was not Miss Hunt's
taste or her knowledge about‘%%aﬁ%the theater that weudd uwss vsed
choo@ag.individually to select the play. It was sort of a
committee. They did this because they felt that Miss Hunt
was thinking in terms of teaching the students and/or giving
them theater experience)which’was very good, but I think that

Cheek was primarily a showman,and he felt that to get the

)
backing that he needed for the fine arts department and to
present the arts as they should, you had to cater to a cer~
tain common denominator or what people liked. That's why
the Gilbert and Sullivan. He wasn't going to do a Wagnerian
opera or anything that was really an extension)aaé-so@%hing
that was reallychali;nging)becéuse he didn't feel that Wil-
liamsburg and the students,either, would take it. You have

to remember that in those days a great many of our male stu-
dents were being attracted to William and Mary because of the
football ~~ we had a big football team then ~- and because thﬁj?
college wanted desperately to build up the number of males

in the student body versus the rather large number of girls we



could always attrac%\a.n@: Ehe result was that some of these
boys had no background in the theater and no background in
the arts )and so to get them interestewyou had to introduce
them to something they could understand rather easily. I

think this was all to the good but I remember hearing sheut—

%W ﬁ?cvi«*f, H’\m
<bu"t not really knowing\that"‘bhey—i;onk- the Selection of the

plays away from Miss Hunt because she was choosing rather
esoteric plays ) and they wanted some nice, old common theater.
M-@Gu;ﬂ%}.glle became very adept at two types: George
Bernard Shaw and wwmww@wmmﬁmwwwﬁ
Shekespeare. She did awfully:;ﬁe& with Shakespeare ) con$idering
that Shakespeare is not an easy playwright to produce. But

her Shaw was superb. Nowg when we did Murder in the Cathedral 3

Mr. Boyt, who was the designer, g practically took the direc-
tion away f:g:)m her. He kept yelling at her ,«G*O‘""%@*Sp’e@k% that
aovidit de ’

she m)\deing%it right)aag-s@--ﬁ@rﬁrgg,and she sort of acquiesced.
:i»thinkwﬁhewma&é:mdmﬁhavm"sameirm”‘sh“em"rﬂaw"ge-’%imgwbhe*Wi’tie‘af‘“‘“and@fu
Boyt, of course, was highly imrolveo‘lj3 }ke was not only the

scene designer then)bu‘t; he was also quite an actor) and in several
plays he took overtthe acting. This was during the war, you

see, when we didn't have too many students@&ﬁ 2ften31mes

we would get someone from Fort Eustis to be a 'l;ad ),gnd then

he would be called up and we just didn't have him. Juno anck
ihe Paycock, one of the Irish plays. . Four days before the

play was to go oz}/(/z the boy was called up -~ the lead -~ and

John Boyt took the lead and did a beautiful job@ > Anna Belle



Williams:

Thorne:

Williams:

Thorne:

ORpors, e,

Koenig, one of our best aciresses, played the lead against

him )and they did a marvelous job. He went bouncing around

like this wildweyed Irishman )and she was woni/e:;‘/\ul.

Did this not cause friction in the departmentﬂ*fo&ﬂiss Hunt
who had had control of the theater?

Miss Hunt did a beautiful job because I think she reebgg{;géd

-« and this was one of the things that was remakable =
ot

~she-recognlzs®: the taenta@\boh%ia@ she recognized that he
wasn't trying to be nasty to her as an/individualé,f he was just
txy(;\zg to make the play function>and go she did not resent

it. /\é[ think she had to resent it a 1ittle bit, but she really
didn't act that way; she was a real ladyyabout it.

Did this go for Leslie Cheek as well?

I wasn't here when Leslie was here. I don't think Leslie

ever came di;ect%\uy and was obnoxious in any wayj I

think it was just sort of an undermzrrenb-&n%I think he
probably talked it over with the dean of the faculty and with
the president of the college)agd they more#or%.ess told him ,

I think, that he ﬁm-eghad to work it out with Miss Hunt -~
which he did. He was in Baltimore just before the war, you

see, Jjust before Pearl Harbor. ;They put on a production up
‘bh&/_c Wﬁ_’"\
there )and it was about that time/\ he got in touch"Althea and

11terallyj4 humbly apologizeddsecaua? I don't think he realized
what a talent she had for bringing out the best in students.
Now one criticism that used to be levied at her, which I

couldn't blame her for@ she was always looking out for people



who could do certain things which would fit into a choice
of play. Nov/i%when we had twins here =~ the Bray twinsy/“
FouS5¢ == well, Whs¥ the dickens, they put on ome-of-the
-«Shakaspewema?c]saysmth&twhadwto“fdo“s*m bhidng
Ho&acuse@wm»ﬁ They were perfect. We—didnid-
«evemlmow«%fae&b%, I hadsome-of them in my

classas( )a.nd I never knew one from the other; I really
didn't. We had an awful time with them. And the little
devils...Pne would come to class and the other one would
be out doing something ~= they were in the wrong class.
She was criti,?ized for that) but it Jjust simply meant that
she recognized these talent%%ﬁa? every now and then we had
some difficulties because she felt: that all of these stu=
dents in the theater should have a thorough grounding; they
shouldn't be stars immediately. I won't mention the name

J
but one little girl came in and she was going to be "the

)
stap! and /she had a lot of talent, a tremendous amount of
talent, bu;. she didn't do all the things she wanted in
the theater right away,so she went off to another school.
Much later¢/she did go on to Néw York and she worked up
quite a reputation in the theater, but she was impatient,
that was all. And Miss Hunt didn't believe in that. She

ﬁ Cin the d@%‘ﬂmau\z
believed in a thorough grounding/ Newall of us, wap- ]

<posed to..- n—tor.ins«tanca,..tha_pain:ter«aasmsuppnsedmtp exhihih -~

and-paind.-.Ne wer\e/-aaz&» supposedly to do our work within bhe
confines of the fine arts building as much as possible so that



the students could become involved and watch a profession%
Cso to speak) work. For instance, Mr. Rust was y@ when I

came 4% working on a memorial { I think an urn) for the

Cheek family@@ém was working this out in clay) and then

we saw the casting of it into pla.ster)a.nd the finished
plaster was then sent off to be made into bronze. I was

and I began to send 'be—-ti&"é%

) U V‘? ni.
; SorTly wateru:olors and drawings and-..
e ) Wasit mul
wso-forth. The architect == course, there/lweren—'t—mf

<

than-one bullding going right then )but he was involved

with some restomtion)masiorin@m%dmmoﬁwth@
and people would come to him. The masic people <4 somée o>

1
~—/
g~ caused dissension because they md to grab these stu-

dents) and they-would-make-msic.Sunday-morning-and-they
~woudd-have-rehearsals.ang>the number of people who were
really talented %hall we sa;@as fiddle players or

trying to exhibit at thgshows

something of that Wers fairly Limited and the result was

that one group wanted to play quartet musi; and another group
wanted to play orchesﬁral msic. Well, the fiddle playors
couldn't be in both places)and 50 we had some dissenﬁion because

of that --«»W - t.%haka ausic..all-over-thdd
o L Bot

\placa_and-»thé;s;, I think/é the whole idea behind the original
fine arts se@p was excellent. This is gonb«and- the thingf

that first started the change, of course, was the external
problem of the war. Pearl Harbor -~ we wereea@ li.stening to
Germaine Hazaretl singing down in the old theater( the Colonial

(lasg)
(i piontly ttichs)

MQS@.L/Y)'L .



10

Williamsburg Theater J it was a benefit: "Bundles for Bri~
tain" and then snddéﬁ/)r things began to happen right in the
midd]>.e of the concert. People were being tapped.=¢# (these
were people from Fort msti% an’so that was the first
knowledge a lot of us had of Pearl Harbor. Well, imme~
diaxbely// Lloyd m%the architect, was called up as a
reserve ofﬁ:cer) and he had to leave by ~- I think he

left by the middle of Janmmary. Well, the question was:

what to do? The courses in architecture, of course,

immediately were a problem) and wg%litéi:g’;\ally had to M/
{

drop{at least temporarily§ the drafting%.rchitecture Slee

M the history of architecture %we'd-@am M % W

k=3 ™ ~bouch-sith a painter down in Newport News) who'd gone to

the Pennsylvania Academy),é he cam; ;p and taught the
architecture course. We went along“ﬂia best we could.

‘H In 19)46/{ it was a question of what would we do to replace
an architect who indicated he was not coming back- to teach.

%:gfgyﬂ/said, "I've got to make a decis:.on. I-think-that I should,
in fairness to my family, go into an architectural firm
rather than confine myself to teaching)which is so limited
in potential earnings)" apd he went with a firm in New York
which he is still with,-Garne & Jacobs. A 1519 is now one
of the partners and -he%com:g dowm periodica]l;. He sent one (W%}
of his sons to William and Mary) The question was: what to
_.do? D:Ld we want to teach architecture on the same scale and

i 77 coordinate it as ,andz then I went over to the dean's offices



1

@t the time it was Dr. James W. Miliez) and Dr. Miller con=
vinced: i/hat perhaps it was best not) ‘try and get an archi~
tect because teaching salaries at that time were not very
high. You could expect aﬂ beginning salary at the very
mostciround $2500 and it was not attractive to decent people
in the field of architectura }‘hat's all there was to it.
This is a reality. And thexy,«-ar’amrsegue decided that we

could make some sort of an arrangement with Colonial Williams~

burg to teach the course in architecture aﬁd we were__verx,/ﬁ@(%ﬁp)\)

sor of architecture at Pennsylwanlia State and also at the
who

University of Virginia, Mwas here with Colonial Wil-
; a

liamsburg working on the archives,ang he had brought with him

ot

Howard Deprstyne A

pife-appointed to Colonial

Williamsburg )m Howard was the only American to completely
(Bawhaws )

go through the course of the Ba;;;\-ﬁaus in Germany and was a great

friend of Mies Van der Rohe and Walter Gropius. Howard bew

4 \
v/ Ch . Oh
came the assistant of Mr. er) and Mr. g@}ger said he wonld

gladly teach a course for us at the college)but he also wanted ,

us to appoint Howard DeA(rstyne ‘to agsist him »=~ which we did. @W
<An% 1 think the administration was most generous in having two

men teach one coursegwm? they built up that dourse iremendously.

We had no one teaching history of architecture as suche...ls.-hag

~= in other words, vwe were only having half of our d=x in

architecture goﬁis ” G-S0-WRAL-WO™WOre—going™ to "’"‘-’“‘“W

wemqemgaw@mmmme%. Could we bring in
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somebody $o0 teach the whole thing? We didn't think we
eau1d>so Dean Miller suggested that perhaps like all:

other colleges/{ we should think in terms of x‘%istory of

art.# So I scurried around , and I found that there was

a young doctoral candidate from Yale, Richard Newman, and
that he was ready to go into the business)but +that he had

not finished his dissertation. So I happened to be up in
Guilford, Connecticut {we had a summer place at Indianty

Cove ) and so I got in touch with Dick Neman(gaaa he came

down and ~we interviewed him and thought highly of my intere
view. C[n those days /{ the head of the department was responsi=-
u?;ang; you could ask the opinion of some of your faculty if
ym: vanted tqy there was no requirement to have a-cempletely
democratic mess/or whatever you want to call it, so I think
wesinade a very good selection this way. You didn't have everye
body putting their finger 3into the stew and mixing it all

which

b/

> Dick had had a liberal arts background at Dartmouth,

meamg that he understood & at
arts college. He had been annEnglish major(and we all-recog-
nizeds7even theny/that the art students did not always write

their theses with the best English in the worlc.i}/ar\n& m‘ﬁ? /{é&% m”“}
s

had gone to Yale and taken*u?a speclal course in the ‘h /umiﬁﬁ

which they were giving then under a{ art ti@ m and
~~~~~ Shudenty
he shifted over to history of art and became ene of the at
Foeulbion A

Yale who studied under the famous Frenchman Raymond Deusse¢ =
/\ .

@e was a medievalisé. “He--had.t0..go- I§ Hed-been
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d he had married another young

z

lady who had gone to Yale in art history, so both he and

his wife were interested in art history.

Williams: Was there anyikind of resistance within the department to
going into art history? 4:](} /.;/P W

Thorne: No. I think everybody recognized - there was no resistance

at all. In fact, I think, the general consensus was )"gell,
this is the way things are going; this is ithe way it siould
be." There was no resistance whatsoever. I mean once we
aid it./? there was no resistance. Of course s you must remem-
ber, that the deparitment,except for Miss Hunt, was in a state
of flux. Just before the war, for instance, Mr. Sly and
the director of the band, Raymond Dou@se » and several (ZD W7
others were gone. Mr. Sly was difficult ... ==
to work with )and the administration indidated to me that
they didn't want to see him anymore. I told him when he wZ/o
had a chance to go out %o Missouri <t Tlline,s W W M
he better take it. Mr. Doubsec was released from the col-
lege employd because of some of his actions. The sculptor,
-you—s@;? Ted Rust, went to war in ‘42, He joined up with
the American Red(Cross as an ambulance driver, stc. )and
that's how I got into the picture.\ I was appointed as act~
ing chairman in the spring of 'h3. Another thing, I think sz
as an academic persor}{/ Dr. Pomfret,who had been elected presi~
dent in 42, I—thinle-horwas interested in pu}-:ing in a his-f
tory;@bfflart person as opposed to this rather artistic, Wagnerian
idea of Ieslie Cheek. I think it appealed a little bit more 75 /Lo

WVWZ&%?Q %M%Wm



Williams:

Thorne:

1

So ék it was all in the way it worked out.

Would it have happendd this way without the war?

Probably not. It may have eventually, but not so e.bruptly«

-enid I think this sort of thing happen%uicker when these
outsideiﬁ;g%e I;i’o us.’ @ngwthen the n;x; thing that we . .
knew, of course, within the department, there were people h
who were trying «- for instance, go out andtteach mmsic ")
and the ldea was that it was very difficult to teach music
without more music training and you see, with the fine arts

set-up, even a music major couldn't take too many music

courses because he had to take all these other things. And

so the result was that the people who took the most music

were people who actually majored in philosophy. By majoring
oyt

in philosophy they could rid(Lof their concentration quicker and

so then they would take all these music courses. I think one

girl who graduated was actually a music major; she had more /

courses in music than she had in philosophy.)But this was i« )
technicality that got goi.nguaﬁ&?' so th;r; ‘r;egan wwg:W;:':MsM;mwes

to break up the department. \ﬁAlso s it was a real headache bew

cause how do you finance a department that has a theater, that

has a regular fine arts section,;“(;@?r?ad laboragies) s and “theniibee:
hasg nmsicwwith all the problems of rumming a band and an orches-

7 :
tra and so forth. It was a terrible situation in many ways(,

W the band and the orchestra had mostly donated

instruments, some of them the most awful things you've ever
seen -~ HWented up old horns and whatnot. I think the college
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.~ occasionally would buy something, such as a big tuba or
something of that sort7because the students just couldn't buy
those things. We had a bass fiddle that was in the repair
shop most of the time; The college did pay for the repairs 3
but I don't know where the fiddle came from;it wasn't very
much. In 1942«h3, we were charging all of our students a #0©

Wlab fee for which theyb got nothing, absolutely
nothing. They got the use of the tables and they got the

use of easels and things like that )but nothing was coming

back to them. Nowg/there were lab fees in physies, biology,

there e

so forth -)anq\ thece lag fees are:,‘alse for some other classes aLsa bt

\a@ the students got their lab fees back in the materials
they were using. There was a lot of controversy over the

lab fees) so Dr. Pomfret said, "let's eliminate them. What

we'll do isg-we'll raise the tuition a little bit¥~~ shall
5
we say five—dollays per person -~ and that would equate

0/>

to the ben—deuars%se—ﬂorﬂf} %»don%«knew-exactly what
e —happened-but—we had-a- 1ab~«£ee~. Welll’ 5
ot e the different departments didn't know how to handle finances;

@\‘d‘ '\\\ ko e"‘*l:’
m;j& oo Lt *\X“ or it was really very strang%}med can remerber when we
a&m = et

kel
3 were all called in in order to take away from our individual

the old boys in

budgets that we had been given under this neﬁ non~lab systemy be ERUE @
nd Dr. Davisjhgs. refused to buy

biology microscopes ten at a time. He said;:}t isn't fair) s0

the only way to do it was to buy a hundred at a time. It

meant that all of the other departments in order to had-tg=
: ~
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keep that old bozo in microscopes// had to give him half
gep

our lab feesﬁé:n”é?fdw that he could supply his people with

a hundred microscopes in one year. It was a very strange

situation that we were working withmm of course, over a
hes

period of years ﬁwhat 18, happened is the lab fees @3

«&he»«mensymf»erxsewiabsw@ ha;{ gone up slowly but surely,
but inflation has gone up three or four times as fast) so
realeﬂwhen I left, with the new additions and with infla-
tion, we were practically at zero,if not less. What they're

running on now I don't know but I think that nowadays they're [on ]

much less. 5 Wﬁ:t'y““pe'cu“lmjtﬁﬁg. Anyway/% we didg~
under Mr. Pomfre%begin to buy supplies for our students’ )

g

Jaéthis was a good thing because a lot of our students would

not have been able to work \properly if they'd had to buy

their supplies themselves@ag%o the department began to grow
because ofil;;eéﬁziminating the 1a; feez Then the fine print in

the catalog%;- Fine Arts 20%%5 changed to equal print with
English 200 >amd so we immediately jumped from a registration of
aboutwsim in two sections to a registratin of ene—hunérad—aa’d’
“bwexrby-?ﬁv’m within a few years we were filling Washington

&
100 ,uhich was not the best place to rk in. It was very

resonant because-~of the "m\x’;& of shia% tile and the
ceiling was not correctly fixed_)og?but it was a lively room
and you could talk in it very decently. Then the architects
came in and re-did it and made it worsea,/[because they put

acoustical tile over the speakers' area. So the speaker; instead
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offhaving a nice sounding board to throw their voice out 7
couldn't do anything; it was just mfﬂed}%n@’ so we had to

go to a sound system )which was a terrible messOand—so—ferth?%?

b:vaiel ;/bhenfvf“co&rsef(another change that came in, of courses=-
~ ot

was tl;é? -——gventusllys-instead of teaching Fine Arts 200 as

a collaborativeywe decided/f for continuity's sakey,7 " ..

; to give Dr. Newmsnthe course as his course s very much like

the famous history course( Dr. Fouler's conrs%. Now this

does something good but it also takes something away from

)
it. It means that you get only one man's opinion all the
way through, but you do get continuity and

@

~that~everybody-mas-or-less-has-their-ocwn-way-of..delivering -

r-aifiDr. Newman believes in a minimum of slides -= in other
. <

words, the visual material hag!‘ been reduced. The verbal
S
material had been increased, which is perhaps due to his

English backgromc}Wﬁhe result was thaigjphysically/fhe
used to fry a slide every now and then. He'd get
exclted and talk about one foz?rten minutes. The result was
that some of the slides would/zliterallyz'melti So
it slowly but surely Mr. Roseberg,-who Was—in—the-course, finally
/gid only the Oriental section because Dr. Newman didn't know
anything about that. My painting was done by Dr. Newma.%)m'xd-*
(smrmcm So " the course became'his"course. I'm sorry in a
na}f;\%; did that )but it was more convenient to run it that
way. Then when we moved into the new building, of course, Crie Ats 1

200 became so popular emd-with~the -- there were 22l fixed
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240 with some extra seats put ix:’{o e Iran,.Oone-yogpy—ww

one yesr (oo h b

F-bhd G~-168-0pt6F=m-te-ra: tWO sections,\
wWo s ,ég o @ 7 g
had a section of 85 /,and Dr. Newman had a full sectiong

Wﬁ“%‘“é“?“ﬁ““a?iﬁﬂﬁ:y%@d&mpmmmﬁ

Williams: TYou're describing the congitions in Washington;Hall, but what
were conditions like over in 61d Taliaferro?whtch—ﬂas-year%\

Thorne: Well, in 711d Taliaferro we had what we call the "black holef.,

The room had been designed simply by taking two orcthree: ./
rooms that had been dormitory roonj originally and just gutting
them. And then upstairs the small rooms were also taken over,
and part of the flooring was left to create a projection rooMm.

The projection was terrible. We had a delin ear \scope
~whtehr-is-simply-by g K M%?’@ other words,

and @mvﬂ‘bs

l:’ookss,7 and slides mounted on black paper) or-prints-mounted-one:
IA

W&W and we had janitors who used to run the machines,

-axe’ /they had to lie on matiresses to run them because the

machii:e was right on the floor and was ﬁn)xdied down and the entire
room( including the windowsa was painted black v&-th—bladg?

paizt and the lectern was red (we had a little plitf{o?)b@ ?»haiw@ .
seats were tiered bacls‘an%then we had a blackgoard/t directly
behind the speakeg&nd—a—big—sexseen% %&w%t was a fairly
small room; I think we could get forty people into it or even
forty~five if you crowded people in «~ it was not too sa‘b:i.sfac-

tory. The acoustics weren't too bad)but. the black walls were
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\, such that I can remember having an 8:00 and the stu~
(X\ S I remember

dents%emeﬁ‘in and falf ;sleep.

Lloyd Bewdy.and I
them to wake them up. So ﬁ,ﬁf”’reallw it was quite an informal

used to throw chalk at

sort of thing.
Williams: O0ld Taliaferro ﬁstructurall;{{veu—were—*beﬂingme‘m-otheﬁz,
eay%was slightly unsound, vou were telling me the other dayq,.
Thorne: Well, it was much tougher than anyone thought%wb—uha%—hadg

s W it had
been built as a dormitory. It didn't even have any inside

S

plu"mbing} fhe male occupants had to go down to a place they
called "little Egypt)" which is down near what is now the power
plant. After being used as a dormitory for sometime, in the '20s
I :think-it was briefly an administration building‘. and the office
at the end of the builiding on the first floor on the west side

Lip.e]

was President Chandler's office. I had it later and
A ; —tree>

I used to think of hi the stories,\use"d to be told

and Studeftg
about how he used to watch out the window at facultytpassing

by andWevery now and then he'd call someone in,

frighten them to death. The building was ready to be demolished

hed
and Leslie Cheek took it and started at the first floor)'»az{d/ttook

out one-half the building inside and made two studios =« one for
chn g
sculpture and/\for the theatere-;f@ the ceilings had to be
‘hOU‘ e —
tall because of the }l{ foot requirement on ceiling. So they

)

went way down and put sort of a cement floor i%right at

ground level for thaf}q and the regular level of the floors, you
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see, was probably four feet up higher. They gained some
footage by doing that)so you had two levels in the sculpture
and scenery rooms. Then ‘they-had—to—<= since they'd lcnocked

@8[\; ok Q&(
out supports 4 they had to put some iron pipes in /Ito sup-

port the second floor ‘M{Mﬂa&@%ﬁ Then

$hey-went upstairs end-they kept one room as a faculty lunch

room-round\:\ table discussion room

it had a little kitchenétte and a place for people to hang
Coesos .

their _clothe?ri ht next to the kitchenettex and then the
A & )] Y

had the lecture room on one side. On the other side was a
library where //Zagaiygthey pulled out the rooms S and the

pipes were beautifully covered up with these wooden supports ‘o

and-they looke&likeﬂ columns sé—bng@hey had to put the

pipes in to support the third floon. They had wall-ito-«ﬁan
built - A
carpeting in the library and-built~inzvery simple/\tables e

(they weren't really tables, they were sort of benches that

were built~in é\nd everything was very nigely;a@lanned@andaf-

é.he hghtmg._w;:;.s gnﬁrectma very simple scheme by

which you took 6V molding around a plank to make the lit- CBLE

tle shallo;\bray, then you put lights inside ( mbrdinary bulbs>
Over

that threw the light up against the ceiling. $1a.ce where

the so~called librarian would sit,»th&-lirttle—h:}mani&nl&-desk.
which~was-buiit-in-arcund-these colWiAS ~0F "§UPports,; —the teil=—
<ng was indirect lighting again and was simply architectural
drafting cloth with marks indicated by using black Vireé Sse’

it was sort of a grill

z )
-

and the light came down indirectly from
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above anﬂ it was inexpensively but interestingly done. We
didn't have very much money. There's a story énd Idon't
know whether it's true or not but it sounds likedbhe' situa~
ti.nn}that Mr. Cheek authorized or bought and paid for out of
his own maney some things that he wanted to fix up his of-

fice. He presented the bill and the college auditor refused

)]
to pay it because it had not been authorized. He went to

see Mr. Bryan, the president, and Mr. Bryan said "Leslie,
you ought to know better; you'll have to pay for that.
And the story is that he did have to pay for some of the
things he did himself. Then the third floor of the builde

aonbinvoue

ing was on the Jamestown Road side. Theﬁpu’c one huge set

e there,
of dormer windows A /RO’

-which gave
it a studio appearance Wénd very nice light becawvse=-
ét was primarily norkh lig@é&n% 2hen under the eavesyto the
right and left of the ‘windows//we /had lockers because that
was absolutely mﬁ@abl@ space. On the other side of the
building up there [on the south side of the building) there
was & office and then of course/¢ the other rooms were knocked
off because of the projection room. The plumbing was fascl-
nating. The ladies' room was on the top floor, way at the
end of the building, and later 4 it became so:t ,i?f a passage
through to the fire escape ‘that' was added on"%_a isort of as

a bandaid to keep the building from falling down under

’ e Hhat |
Admiral Chandler's reign./\ e didn't have any fire escape.

The staircase had a fantastically handsome decorative feature
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M1
vwhich went all the way from the first floor/\through and was

@
.-+ the back wall of this chimmey Ted 5{53%’ had sculpted the
on

-~
later condemned by the fire marsha.‘lé as a chimney amd Hgainst

various arts in low relief and either side were planters
‘ A

en--spikes with very handsome green plants

in them and-these-plants we had a duplicate set of thes
plants that-wes kept in the greemhouse so that they could be
periodically exchange} Water was pumped way up to the top
of this arrangement and came down over pleces of glass in
drips) % which was fine at first but was a headache when I
became head of the department. It was just impossible to
handle because by that time the Williamsburg watez;é( which was

)
salt deposits on the glass meant that these pigces of glass

being pumpetg%/twaségﬁ of all sorts of natural salts, and the

had to be taken out practically every six months and scraped
completely. Then we began to get leaks and other things,

and finally we stopped the fountain. The next thing we stopped,
of course, was thesplants. Then the fire marsba]j/ came along

Bnd
-aand—agaé:?in the middle '50s b made us put a flooring in.
The sculp’q}%rgq panels were still kept. '~~~ . U:The top panel

we retained and took up to the new bullding. Some day

I hope somebody will take the trouble of put;\'fi.né it up.

Williams: You had told me how when a train came by there that «=
Thorne: Oh, that was a frightening experience because the building
was built with very shallow foundations )and on top of th»at

u““dzﬁﬁe foundation materiak was a combination of stratas of sand
A\
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L

¢
and blue claraﬁ 1ater when they were working on the students®

t.udent campus centex;/(they were taking bodrings
directly beh:.nd our building and they went down 5’5 fee'b and
this was all they found all the way,, y-aat that's one reason
for the campus center having a construction that is literally

M a cement bo]‘t/{because of this peculiar terrain. <Evidentlym
j}he ravines in Williamsburg are very interesting) #he Duke

/

of Gloucester Street was cut by at least two of them in the

eighteenth century which h:;' now b;fﬁedm Evidently there

Was a ravine that came up behind the power plant and almost

came into the Wren courtyard. In fact, there a;‘e indications

that there was a pond of some sort in the area ;#ln the eighteenth-

century records tiex mentlon a pond. Sgﬂ/it's a very strange

situatio%amlo iouxse s We have anothegsﬁi on campus at the

O < Aakn A

head of the Crim Dell. The /(building that was C:upposed to go

into that area, you see ~- Dr. Pomfret in 191;}44 'h5 got the

General Assembly to give us $250,000} and he was going to

build a building that would include the fine arts depart-

ment )but they found out that the foundation material 1'.he>r‘e,,¢2

@he subsoil and so forth}was térrible;a;nd;’there are'—lmrairi‘;éf

springs under there that would have niean’o hundreds of pilings@

amd they would have spent almosthhalf the money for just a sub-

foundation . So that's one reason Dheb's never bees built W}
onttenpl because of the tremendous cost of bridging that soft

foundation material.

Williams: Was that the first talk there was of a new fine arts building?
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Williams:

Thorne:

o

—

2l
thats

It was in the 'hOs/\we first talked of it. Dr. Pomfret
wahtqgﬁ;ﬂfl.:to do i.t) and they did get some money)but then
of coursey/when we found out the cost of the preliminary
building and—th%they couldn't possibly build the rest
of it. It's interesting to note that Marshall-Wythe, for
instance, muﬂt—:er—a:emf -- or what is now James
Blair - was built for around $135,000. To build a building
like that today runs literally into the millions, or about
a million dollars, anyway, or mored aénd?/i.t's awfully hard
to reallze that. /
The buildmg sthen, that was the fine arts building was to
be rergfovated in the '50s rather 'charjxo z(i‘e[zi‘gne.
This is another interesting thing. ° \MThe Board of Visitors
~- and it's awfully hard to find out just what happened -- but
at various time the old fine arts build:’mg/ )which was 0ld
Taliaferra was condemned, literally condemned. The first time
I really knew that something was trying to be done about i%l
was called into a meeting in President Chandler's office with
Lockert Bemiss éarf& .j/;t was a question of the safety of the builéd-
ingéaafge had the ;ollege architect, Mr. Major, with us,and we
triedcto get Mr. Major to say that the building should be com-
pletely torn down )an‘d Mr. Major wouldn't go quite that far.
The result was that there was quite a hassle and the #resident

)
said that it woiild cost a quarter of a million dollars to re-

place the building, even in its present shapes-end-se—forthZ

Lockert Bemiss had suggested that repairs would cost around
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$85,000.and we still probably would be shy of the square

3
footage we neededéanﬁ? you have to remember at that time et

that included music, theater -~ the whole department was

morejlor}‘less together when this was going or\}aeeausg it
1hat

was shortly after that/( we separated music. Well, there was

an old chicken coop @o-called\on Jamestown Road which had

& weed spd
been put in as 2 war building; it was da ez paper construce-
tlon)szﬁi;?e plumbing and all the necessary utilities were
there. Soj Lockert Bemiss indicated that he thought it
would be much more to the point to buildlwith what would
be called "home construction" types -~ some buildings out
there that would house the whole department complex. Admiral
Chandler said no)and there was qiite a fight that went on
about this sort of thing. The result was that in order to
stop condemnation broceedings(!‘)ecause of the fire marsha.}ﬁ and
se—fort‘t% they wrapped around the building a fire escape az)1d
did a little repair work on the roof and did some ﬁ;intiﬁg.
‘Bpe~of~the-regyons- 67 theold buitldingrockingaround-so-much-
when&he.q:minsmuem;mbymw%“%@“”f%ﬁ“%mW“%uWh@d”Wmﬂvn%w

‘terrible-subsoil-~condition but~you haﬁ,a' around the bage of the
GM&WX

building yeu-conld your-lmife—eT tepk ny nifeTEnd. T-coulds
ram it between the bricks un’oi:h it disappeared )and s0 .
Garst, who has laid un:pteenﬁ;bzligks for theccollege, came
over and 1§ worked on it and pointed up the whole building s /7
all around the base@a;nﬁ’, on the back stoop of the building,

facing the campus center, some of the bricks were disintegrating

—
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and turning white with salt «- you could taste it. Evidently,
some sort of salt was in the clay or in the sand that they’cl
mixed[ ‘ #ey may have used sea%rjgm sand from Yorktomﬁ% but
the bricks were turning white. You had a white efflore)scence
a2 over the bricks )and you could wipe it off and you could
taste it; it was salty. Sq/jthe old building was in really
bad shape. \%ﬂmﬁpracticany all the doors on

the first floor if you. 1ooked at them you could see that

they were not hung at right angles )W they were sort of
angled “

)

1;.‘4.g1'nhC -\and—so_for%h? It was a real rattletrap of an old

building. Then, of course, the next thing that happened

and pieces of wood had been added to make them wintere

was the idea of a new building, completely new building.
And although we had talked a lot about it during Chandler's
regime/ﬁt was when Paschall came that it became more of
a reality.
Williams: Why do you think that was?
Thorne: Well, the bullding was getting olde%:;agaéanf?’ It was shaking

more. Also, we were spread all over the campus,and
; ) Mo?
our facilities just couldn't handle what we had. We-had-records®

—te—show—-the—am«mwg,also we had problems down at the old
Thhere X
power plant. When Carl Rcseberg had his sculpture studio we
1\
had not only students but we had rat%iana the rats were as large

as small dogs, and they were getting so bold they were coming

)
out even during the daytime when the students were ’ohere»l The

roof leaked down there. In a heavy rain you practically had to
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have an umbrella inside there. %&—!mou;zit was not a good

setﬁfnp andzsq’ We were Wf—bem%dispersed. Washington 100 )

aad-«e——wem—dew the old power ‘plant and of-course, by that

time,&alswwe had established the misic department,which was

)
again a matter of recognizing that the music people had to have

a curriculum of thelr own.and’

if they were going to teach music.

Wiiliams: TYou were 4telling me the other day how one student, in particular,
helped you convince people from the sta’oeﬂ\ g&iﬁding needed re-
placing. !

‘\'Therne; Glenn McCaskey decided that his public relations career should
Z’ Wf"z\ buddd with selling the committee t:t::j was investigating the
conditions of the college and were going to make the recommenda-
tions for the budget -- I suppose you'd call it ltz(ﬂ%udget
committee. - They came to William and Mary and looked around
the different buildings )and they came into our buildingémd-é%
—Glenn—had—~=-1 didn't know about it until afterwards -~ but Fienp
-hfz had gone out on the street and cornered about twenty stu-~
dents that didn't belong in thg fine arts department)and they
suddenly appeared in the painting depattment -~ some of them
holding brushes and some of them standing in front of easels

with other people's work on them) and of course/a/they hung their

clothes up all over the place Cfnd~ﬂae—n£\the_jgand_nf_llisiterr

~
~er one of the committee mem¢bers as he was going through behind
// —

the lockers((h,l%knocked a vwhole bunch of clothing down> and he
tuwrned to another man and said, "This is worse than Virginia
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State.® Eﬂm—ﬁe&udi-éﬂmit got to the point

asked them if they wanted to go up to the second floor,
some of them shook their heads. No, that was a real

2714 see the build-

been

ing was just an old building £hat had more-or-less/\gutted

selling Jjob because I think%hey could -

arid that it was now slowly deteriorating. So that's how
I think we got the appropriation for the fine arts build-
ing S ‘that appropriation was $690,000 when it finally
ended u /in the budget and was approved by the governor.
That meant we could put the building out for bids and hope
that the bids would be reasonable. E/V\Vh;ﬁe:l bids came in

the  was
a% A bid @w $675 ,000 and I was jumping around in great
glee when I heard about it“‘a@ I talked to Bob English) &aé@<.
Bob English was shaking his head >and I asked him why. Well,
it seemed that that bid did not include the fee for the
architects,) vwhich was some $20,000-odd)and S0 we were not
within the total cost of the building. But then some
shenanigans went on -- and there's no other way of pu@?ng

it because it was absolutely silly. They began cutting by
taking out of the original contact the airﬂconditioning-

':';lf cooling units. They left the duct work

in but they took that ou't.)and they were allowed-by—the—cone=_
wbra‘&tz$1 8,500. They alsc;ﬁeviden’olwtook out all the sinks/%~
QL’ don't know how the architect thought we were going to work
withoné -—%hosa}‘sinks and of-—coursegzsome of our counterséand-@v
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7/{% did have the dimmer bank for the lecture room,which

was a very expensive theatrical bank which was not needed
at all. A4ll we needed was a very simple dimmer control
which could have been put in for each circuit for sbout 6.
-six_dollam:.7 The $1200 dimmer bank they put in was not
necessary at all. They/i_s,evidentl;;/é’ cheapened the contract
on the amplifier that was supposed to be put into the sound

system and they certainly cheapened the contract somehow

on the)amplifiers because we got absolutely cheap,-perfeetdyes
goo%ampliﬁers for that great big lecture room that were

not ﬁorkable 3 they never worked properly. We later had to

put in a $L00 special amplifying set. All of this money

was taken out of the contract. They had to turn around and

raise some more moneyito put the airféonditioning-cooling

the
units back in and price -~ the original contractor said he
n ov FQUe 00 o ¥y coas

would do it for $23,000, They got snippy with him®——82k,0005

)

$25,000; hen they ended up,s it was $40,000. I don't know

how this sort of thing goes on)but anyway it's a disgrace,

Lo wee whih wag
an absolute disgra.ce/\wba@g@ mishandled in the building of that

fi"is)@@d ot $4,00¢
building. Then we find months later thatqthree-'or—fe\tréwusan%ﬁ
de&mjwas still in the accountBand we wWere able to spend
that on some necessary equipment@an&‘so—for'bh% One of the things
we got out of that, I think, was the puij;f\\ing in of the wooden

backing covered with material r—yeu—ieaosgg? for the different
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exhibition rooms. You see, .. they had put in an arrange-
ment )A\ﬁhi;eh “hew_.reda :ork:ed properly at all) of steel slots in the
masonry, and thenAworkmen had filled up the steel slots ind
the masonry with mortar)and they'd never been cleaned out,)
ar@ so the:result was that half these holes in these steal
slots didn't work.

Williams: Had the faculty been eonsulted in the design of the builde
ing at all?

Thome%%éo. Let me put it this way: I was called inland I think I
had Dick Newman come with me. We went to a meeting in the
bursar's office(or the dean's ofi‘ice>/)a\.nd we sat around  a
table and the budget officer told us that eti-we-oculd-d6S
_#%ve had nothing to do with the design of the building)'q%
all we could do was give the architect a list of specifica-
tions, needs, and so for'bh) and it was up tégsthe architect
who designed the building and for us to keep our cottéjn-
pickin' hands off. Notz_;?Zthe architect was nice enough to
send some of the drawings down to us and ask for suggestioms 5

so we did this as much as possible. Butj( as far as the type
of seat that went into the auditorium was concerned, as far
as the shape of the auditorium was concerned, as far as the
acoustical arrangement of the auditorium was concerned, as
far as the sound system of the auditorium was cmcerned «-
no, we didn't have anything to do with that. And even later
when we got the mox}\ear ejzr pt;’g:fng in the display panels (as

you might call thenf} we had a heck of an argument with the
A
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architect. He wanted to put in these pr%built, C ok very

expensive ones from New Iork/zwhich would have metal seams

every three feet which meant that we couldn't do the right

display. We had an awfﬁl time with the architect. And later g«

we had trouble with the venting system for the foundry. A

very expensive unit was put in that just didn't work jand I

don't think it's worked to this dayéan@{gf course,what happened

was that eventually the foundry had to b; temporarily

closed while the architects -agaif were given the job of design-

ing a rather expensive exhaus&tﬁté >again if anyone had

thaught about it,all you had t,,\o do was simply open up two

areas in that brick wall and put a hood and a big fan in

the upper area and to have a suction area fcé;'é?c\\c;ming in at

the bottom -- and this could have been done for $500,but no,

they had to have the architect in theré')' and they spent a

large sum of money.

Had the old conditions held back the fine arts department and
varbers helped

similarly did the new /\he&;; it?

The new qua.rtexf helped it. The olé department, of course, was

very chummy and all that sort of thing (f.n%j;t did hold us back

a 1little bit, I think,because we were crauy?efd for space, but

the new quarters, of course, once we got into thexg,f{did attract

people. I think it's almost like advertising -- a new build-

CRine pets])
ing. The kids liked the presentation of/\ 200 ~- that was a
popular cours?'\«a@so they just poured in and we began to ’have

)
these big classes.
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Was Dr. Paschall particularly interested in fine arts? Was
he particularly interested in building? Why woﬁld you say
you got the building when you did?

Well, I think Paschall ﬁas interested in the-pi

T
improving the physical plant, and I think he recqg)gnized that

it was just a matter of time until somebody befeximight even

get hurt in that old fine arts department@ —3

you ‘had one staircase at the end of the building and the fire
3scapej }'be way you had to get onto the fire escape from the
lecture room was to open up the windows) and wu&mow;gcrawling
in and out of windows is not the best. And that was an old

wooden building, absoiutely made out of wood. No, I think he
worried about that -- just the physical thing. Several people

had falleri down the stairs because the stairs were so steep,

and -they-used-to-have -when I first went there ey were

4
carefully waxed; we stopped that. (One little girl went all
‘the way down. She could hardly wiggle when she got to the

bottom; 1ucld.ly4she sat down.>

Williams:Have you found while you'ws been here that presidential interest

Thorne:

has been an important part -« for instance, was Mr. Bryan parti=
cularly interested in building up the art department?

more/lozygiess

J
inaugqra'bed the whole interest. Yes, he was tremendously ine-

Yes, he was the one who -was-reg

SV
terested in the fine arts department. Later, we f£ind that his
interest was assumed by other members of the faculty as being

favoritism}bee&ust ran into that with one of the deans)where
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) -? \'\&«/ . A 3
he accused-me-of-saying-that the fine arts department had
“F&vof\s /\

all these special papers from the various presidents and
that as far as he was concerned)(lx}/? more.” Some of this came
about, I'm sure, because Mr. Cheek was a very interesting
person and a very dynamic person )but he also could be sort of
arbitnaré—aag‘ I know that at leaét one large party ::that was
held over in the basement of the Wren Bullding had an invi=-
tﬁtion list that was,-you knewg sort of "s;;zper)" and a great
number of the older faculty members that he thought were sort

A
of d@dos were not invited and this caused some very unhappy

)
feelings. Well, I suppose/<anything like that,where you have
a special party of some sort and set up a special list/ffi you

can ask for trouble. And Mr. Pomfret, of course, == I became

IS |
a gr e)at personal friend of Jack POMfi"‘"E\ and -weg almost immeslistely we (Myw e
DN a r D U -

¢

&&te—lyyg.were invited/@u%‘ to their summer place. My-wife and
0 )

- atsbo-thetr-summer-places (He came in 'uz) and we were

S o

up there for a week in '43 with them, during the war§ Interest- ™

ingly enough, as we were coming home, we were on this old train {,,.3
coming into Richmond and the cars were antiqué and there was 5,

no air-conditioning of course ==~ in fact, there were no seats:

ot
p—

toomil @

Jack and I wexj sitting on the edge of, I guess it was suitcases,
and there was an open window -~ because all the windows we could
get open were open == and it was funny. We went into Philaw
delphia to get the train from Cape May and then from Philaw
delphia down, we had this black stuff coming in the window

and when we uarrived in Williamsburg we were both like blacks.

o
el
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His eyes when he looked at you were white. We were sittih?\_

right near this window and of course, the trains were just °

using the chegpest old soft coal. fle used to come over Frem the Hfoe
almost every afternoon there for awhile fromthHs offfge and
yell at me to come over and have a chocolate milkshake with

him%n%at that time there wasssort of a soda fountain,—-etw

on the side of Trinkle Hall. S%e—-did—thm% %ﬁh@n, of

P

course, i‘ all the presidents -4/119 got called on to do
special thingsf;élike for the inauggration of President
Chandler. My job was to decorate the Wren Building. Well,

I decided that since Eisenhowere was coming here and there
was going to be a real big x%.ng-ding, % what we did was to
make all these seals and cqé;ts;é%ffiérms -~ mOStly seals == of
and we hung them on these ﬁooden panels

9 N . '
outside of each of the windows in the Wren Building }-aﬁ%which

the colonial colleges

gave us twenty~four windows =~ twelve up and twelve down -« and
[sesl X the
then in the center was the/\college of William and Mary, the

state of Virginia, and the United States sea]z@you—see?—knd% -

Qreen mebeti sl
then we——buﬁt‘fi’él built some swagsﬂand shellacked them to
ﬁ‘

make them stiff
ih
to fillAaround the little balconfy

h*

(we'll et that latex

' .;;..“K’hen it was my job all the time,é as long as Botetourt >
was out there in front to see that he was cleaned up./\ And—tiren

lege seal.-Bill Curry and Ted —Rew had been mvolved with

making that when Leslie Cheek designed the platforms to go in
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front of the Wren Building. Now, this idea, this great

tradition of graduating in front of the Wren Building -- it

started out in the '30s. .Befope-the

‘\Y)Q.S;\

ing wag/\f—ixet?end was ready@bout 1932, '33\} they tried one
graduation on the back side of the Wren Building and tha%

really//was terrible. The hot afternoon sun mm%made
everyvody absolutely suffocate. And there was no air »or

g after the Wren Builde

anything, so they had to give that up. Then they went to
the front of the building)and Mr. Cheek came here in '36, so
it was about '36 when he designed that front platform. They

may have had some platforms there before but they weren't,-you

Williams: The ones that's still used now?
Thorne: -And the one that's used now has his central unit) and then I de~
signed the additions, just copying the rest of his, you segs so-

=>Then, of course, I think there'y <

been more changes since I was involved with it. They began putk
ing more platforms in back on either side as the faculty in-
creased\}a.nd alsoy//at one timegwe had the chdir up on there)-é

but the chéirds been moved over to one side now.

fou-seey 1;119 fine arts building -~ anytime
[Toeraq v+l

anything like that was/{;ﬁ we were called ina;aad—'bhenﬂe—'d—ba-

M I was called in a lot about going to the art,é
commission with college gifts, paintings that were g:l.veré> snd

ey g)r instance) ;45 Lady Astor decided

o
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she would give us a couple of paintings and Lady Astor got

)
in touch with President Chandler aas%?resident Chandler said,
"Oh, yes, but we'll have to send them to the art commis~

sion." And lady Astor said, "Well, who's chairman of the

art commission?® "Well, it's Ed Kendrew." "Well, what's

Mr. Kendrew's number?® Mr. Chandler indicated that that

wasn't very nice. "Oh," she said, "I'll handle 4this." So

she called Ed Kendrew)and she said, "Mr. Kendrew, this is

£I suppose she gave her first name/ Astor. /Nancy Astor,

that's right/. I'm giving the College of William and Mary

some very mice portraits, a portrait of William and a por-

and a portralt of Mary)and I want this art commission thing
fixed up.™ I understand you're chairman.® "Yes," he said,
"But}J(Lady Astor, I have to have a meeting of the committee."

She said, "What kind of a chairman are you? Can't you run

your camnmittee?® Well, anyj«ay, we got the things and of
course, I was called in to mske preparations to hang them amd at
N bsmaueﬁs' -werdh over intTrinkle Hall where the presentation

was to be made. I ‘bhink most of the fine

arts peoPIe@ecanse of these sort of extracurricular activitiesn

got hauled into the president's ofi‘lce%n_all—tm%ings

I used to get these notes: "See me. A.D.C." And then I'd go

in -=- I never knew what I was going to get called in for bé-
cause he never indicated what was really going to happen.

But in line with what we were talking about, have you encountered
a feeling that the fine arts department was a frill/@in any way?
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Thorne: No, I never ran into that at all. I ran into some funny

'hhings: President Chandler could never quite forget that

n Avgusi
he was in the service fnd S0 one ef——*bi&dayﬁ I was overuﬂé
+hen!

in,\ I think it was/lMarshall-Wy'bheé(James Blair) I vas in

-end-he had sent out a memo -thgis

had sort of upset some of u§ saying that when we were
not on the college payroll/qm were not employed by the
college )and therefore, literallyy I was not a member of
the faculty in August since I was not on thq@ayroll. Sof‘
he came slong and tapped me on the shoulder, "When are you
going to get into uniform?* So I turned to him and I
said, "When you start paying me." And he shut up and went
down the hall. Youve heard some of the tricks they played
on him?

Williams: No.

Thorne: Well, these were fumny tricksibut he used to practically getr have
apoplexy and this is whyi:W hls reactions, you see, were just
what the students wanted. They took a little chlkswag;n into
James Blair -- I don't know how they got it in ~- and they
went down and blocked the wholé administration offices. And
then this same group\A_féSp(e involved with stringing@cord:%beer
cans, etc.7and they draped the president's house garden}?” with tem,
it—and of course,poor Mrs. Chandler, Louisthandler s Just
didn't know what had happened. She said, "Why are the;loing
these things?" Well, of course, one of the reasons was he

had put in a regulation that was rather difficult to enforce
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that all minors couldn't do any drinking of any sort; they

could drink water and milk on campus)and that was it. Emg™

WWo/m of the deans was a particularly

vicious one )and he went around confiscating liquor

)uhich I

g™ b 8 was the boys way of sort of pushing the
thing around. (Iou see, what had happened, w»;(‘e;resident
Chandler was electe / I went into see him. I thought that
everyone who had any administrative post at all should do
that@wa}ﬂ told hn.m )W*-I—-aa&@ "I think that the way you
came in here was most unfortunate. Personallyj( I don't
think you know what you're getting into." "Gh, yes, I know
everything," he said, "I know exactly what it's all about."
A1l right," I said, "I'm here to work for the college and

anything that's for the good of the college I'llwwork with

you on."® . So that was meddatelyy-in
W“MWWWWWMWWV@%G next
thing that happened,.of~

Louise gave a handsome party over in the president's house

)
Pe u\&
and he had two bars set up. Here'was a gﬂood,rold avy bash.
A

Well, after tha,t) Mrs. Southworth and a couple of the ¥do-
gooders"ﬂ(got together and went as a group to Mrs. Chandler
and laid down the law, literally. They said it was legally
improper for the president to have liquor in a public build-
ing. Well, of course, they didn't know thatﬁ@.egally/vz the

presnsdent’s house is his private residenﬁ/but the dear ladies

/
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Williams:

Thorne:
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really frightened her to death>aaémrw§§‘and&§o -
Chandler had tor stop drinl_cing)and this was part of the
reason, I think, he pushed it down on the poor kids.

It was a fantastic situation.

The Pomfrets and Dr. Bryan, I know, had served liquor.

angthan g

Mo, o At gt ST J
Mrs. Dupont came here and’. and I were invited to din-

ner. We were sitting there; we'd had two good drinks and
finally, somebody came in and said “dinner was served and
Sarah said to Mrs .\Dupont, tWould you like another drink
before dinner?® Yes ,‘A\"W;kaid Mrs. Dupont and sow had one
with her and they told the servant to go back and wait din-

ner, Oh, Jessie Ball loved a good drink, you see./ No, Mr.

gL

Bryan had a butler who still is in ’com) ﬂis name is Wil-
liam Cumber)and William was very proper. I don't know whe-
ther he had been told by Mr. Bryan or wh?.(t it was, but in-
veriablq we were half ey through on: :;:\ten William would come
in and amnounce dinner;, very,-verys s—Wherewould-
You were going to talk about your many trials and tribulations
with Lord .Botetourt.
I was told by Ted Rust almost immediately upon my arrival in
b do semeth, g
late August that in September I could be prepared about
cleaning Lord Botetourt becaunse linva.riabilﬁ ¢7in the fall at the
time of the football games things would begin to happen. Now/@

to me Lord Botetourt was sort of an oddball old statgf;e and the
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only thing I noticed about him was that the freshman girls

e
had to curtsy te-Iord-Botetow
)
thelr little beanies) am-th

Whas%ﬁand then there was invariably a rude and crude bunch
of sophomores who were making remarks on either side of the

walk@j Y

Richmond game that set off the trouble. Occasionally. after a

het almost invariably it was the

V.P.I. game we'd have some }but it was mostly the Richmond game.
It seemed a very good idea for themito decorate Lord Botetourt.
Now, sometimes the decorations were of the type that could be
taken off/;;nﬁ’ grease and toilet paper )aad ete. == just am:atter
of removal. But there were occasions when they began to

paint him‘)a.nd some of the paints were water paints) which

weren't too bad,bnt

egan-~= sometimes they
4
were throwing % enamel, red enamel, against the poor old boy.
This took turpentine and even some paint remover[a little big'\
\9@‘@/‘%: ne P & h
and then it was a matter of soap and water anﬁ scrup brush
A /

and going out there and working on elmost-inveriabig-EvE
I suppose I was slowly but surely in some places damaging the
marble because marble is a verj peculiar material. You cut it
out of the o;l‘iginal block a.rtci r:!é.téré fairly soft)and then as it
stays in the air it forms a/\hard skin @anezhen eventually when
that hard skin begins to deteriorate s the n;arble begins to
granulate and begins to almost go back to = sort of a sand
conéist;.ncy@ -and B/;ozf leg of Botetourt was beginning to shov

this granular disintegration)and it was in very bad shape.
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D 0
© - " Although we had all these troubles the old statugs
i

still stayed out there,and the first thing that was done to

)
protect it,I suppose,came sbout because of Mr. Constable, an

Englishman who was the curator of paintings at ‘the Boston

Mus@um in Boston@aﬁ' he was down here for an antigues forum,
7

- ‘
and he had seen the statug;e and was very interssted in itJ' Lhel
\aa@z, thought of it as a very unusual document because the
original statu/@/es of the eighteenth century that had been in

<

the countrnyQ%were so mutilated -’éféhe ones

that were left == oneiin Chatleston was left ; ~amd the oned

)

in New York a% lead )and &qgimre melted down);z'f so this

was one of the only original eighteenth-century monumental
/\ h

s‘batqées left in the country. And he got very much excited

about it and said something had to be done to protect it~

arid so we had an appointment with the presﬁideﬁ% and we went
2

in to see him and he was very nice about it and recognized that

something had to be done@mﬁa so the first thing that was done,
L s ANy 570 i e
I think, was aAfence was put ‘around it to discourage climbing

up on it, do things, scratch on i'b> The next thing) ;@'we

talked to the restoration and hewmrd several things about

onto it all the time ‘buw@oftentimes the kids would elimb
¢ -

Y O
puting a building of some sort over it.- . Well, that was dis~
couraged by evepybody because the silhouette of the statujfﬁ/a
against the Wren Bullding and all that sort of thing was very
important) and thers didn't seem to be any solution. Nowj to
Loy -
go back a bit. /(x‘:ound WS A 46 there had been an attempt #aéu M

G/M/?»géw Oel Prea. PWW
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“to
A make a duplicate of Lord Botetourtj in ma.rble\;?’ in order to

afig- put the original on the site of the

original statli}/tje down in the gapitol)and Colonial Williamsf
burg was willing to pay for ﬂ;e cost of the replica. Well,
President Pomfre'g,[ at that time /I thought that it might be
a good idea) beea@?m recognized the fact that . the re~
moval of Botetourt would cause a mgw&qa@;t was a
stat@o that moreér‘orffﬂ.ess attracted attention by the stu-
dents and would therefora}i probably be painted again)and
%%Mhe felt it might be safer to do that. Well,
the whole project fell through because they couldn't find a
block of marble of th;gi'oper size anyémie,re in this ceuntry
and in South Americ{:}// even., They finally found a block in a
Brooklyn stoneyard)but the block up there had a fault in it once “they
-aredy took a slice off of it )and so that progect fell
through. After Mr. Constable's interest in the stat@ and
letters being written all over the place and so forth, the
next thing that happened were to hurry up the situation was
that some of our smart-aleck students -~ probably not meaning
to hurt the sta.tu;ze really -= decided that their trick would
be to put some dye tablets on the top of the heagﬁ'in the depres-
sion where the iron piece went down through the \pieee to at-
tach i%%e@he iron plece thap had been put there by Bishop
Madison when he was president of the college with the assis-
tance of one of the faculty members and that's how the head

of Botetourt had been stuck back O%MMW%%
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horo-and. S0 they put these tablets there ,and the
/ oo LO(”A

first rainfall that came along o Botetourt %o turned
. : A

pinkl.

Well, this was a case for professional cleanin%aad?’
they got a professional cleaning outfit from Richmond to come
down here and they said it was going to be a very careful job
and also that they could never do it again, that if they

aid 1t againg it would really rain the statwé'é So/in ordsr
to protect the statuﬁe untilthey could locate it properly énd
by this time the location had been moref r}@iess accepted abam 2

pla.nned location in the new 1ibrary\} \SM? they took him down off

£€-and packed l;im up
in a special case down in one of the warehouses)and I think he
stayed there almost three years%in a special protective case

Wl@m%@m% There's gtill
some foolishness with Botey:tourt an@ I don't know who did it but
during Gl;;risjbma,s vacation last year I saw things had been
taped to his head and so forth.
During the war hadn't you had to take some special precautions,
airsraid precautions with him? Didn't I read something about
that? |

Cw efe
No, I don't think there»wa% any special precautions taken with
Botetourt during the ait:.fﬁ'aid. All I can remember i: ?cused to
go up in the Methodist church tower at 4:00 in the morm.ng)and
I was relieved by Dr. Donald Dav:.R at 7:00, and one merggmgéu/
didn't re]q.eve me. I got on the phone. No, I don't think we

LI
did anything special during the war. Puting in the case was
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Lane
during President Chandler's regimeoamé-ofw-;ﬂmﬁﬁ

cape-oub-~of-the~vase~ws? I don't remember whentthe library was

‘ +
finally opened>but they had to be careful about pnyling him
back. B&b he's more%oxy/fless under protection now and should

be good for another hundred years or so. ‘What-Blse-d

~went?
To go back to the war years Ahe firstthing that-trape<

»pened;;,(I guess it was in 19)42) Sharvy Umbeck, like a lot of

the rest of the faculty, was worried about the fact that the
Omale 1
only students we could retain wers very yuung students who
A

were,&raizﬂrw«saﬁ_before the age of being inducted into the

army) and there were practically none of that caliber around.

He talked with the persomnel at the Naval Weapons Station@:hich
at that time was called the Naval Mine Depof})mdwww“mﬁﬁ
~# and we worked out a plan with them which, I think, was a

real contribution. In order to keep all the beds at William
and Mary warm[which is that famous Wilaw ond %JW "
weﬁ:’ werwere going te-de-ft~waghto go out and fin:l\ proper stu-
den'i;s.u - We_ were: 'noﬂ,"!; 4 supposed to just pick up anybody; we
were trying to find é)i? recommendations from high school princi-
pals and superintendents of schools and so forth the type of boy

Lond 1 |
that would profit by an educationﬁ\whopcouién'g,/prebablgother-'

wisesf afford 1 @mdgwmhammmmw Ehey were
to work three days at the lgaval weapons gtation,‘and to—bor Fo o
classes three days at William and Mar;gaaé? this was put into

operation in the summer of 'ﬁzc'an@I had a college car and my
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particular area was up around the mountains and over into

the valleytan%l can remember going mtowguch places as
Stuart!s Draft and going o¥er there to tfh; XFZ?g'e on the

James River and Buena Vista and all these different places
up around Le:d.ngton:\gzni\v%@emad these boys. TYou'd ¥isit
these families and asbout one out of four would be really
interested;aaéthe next thing we know they were pouring into
Williamsburg that fall. Mr. Kent, who was running the

dining hall, saw to it that when they went to work at the
naval weapons station they had a box lunch nicely fixed up
for the%—prepa'ed‘fcr—thengi ,H? had an extra early breask-
fast\and buses took them to work. They had no ca.sualt;%s,
none of the boys ever got hurt in any way in the operation.
They were loading torpedoes and handling she]lj and all sorts
of things, you see, but it was a very careful operatio%&nﬁ:
some of these boys went through college that way or got their
basic training an% it was a real wonderful thing. Then, of
course, I was. desperately trying to find out what I could do)
. and-T--found-oat-well;one-of-the-things..that.e=.Abbott. i
Thayer.wss..an.artist.who.. mmmammmmammw
ivnwtheﬂfirs*ﬁ’”ﬂ‘oﬂdﬂwagyank I thou.ght., “well, why don't we have

a course in camouflage at William and Mary. Some of these
boys should know something about it before they get into the
army, even if they learn to keep their head down.” S%we had

a camouflage course and we had girls as well as boys taking

)
the course(;aaé it meant that I had to go rushing off to
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the %nt of all camouflaging information which was Fort
Belvoir up near Washington, and interestingly enoughjy Les-

lie Cheek was a major in the ammy md-ha-'wa%up there at

Fort Belvoir()-z:n—e—amonﬁagﬁ I finally got hold of a camou-
flagemgfso_ﬂorth«m& we went to workm we went out there
off the college playing field, off to one side s about where
the open space is in front of the library now(gfbi@;%iz a
wooded area then, but there was 2 little indentation in the
wood. We put up these poles and stzﬂ.ng wires and %he&q?—had
different colored cloths hanging from the wires and zso forth )

and then we made medels and ‘book photographs. Roy Ash, who was

.....

{ / ey
teaching biology, got his camera out and took pictures of

our models to see how well we'd done the camouflage and-se=
W We studied the protective coloration and«so—fepfg and
three-dimensional protection and so for ) it was very in-
teresting.
Williams: Was this for the regular college students or was this for the

A' SeToPs ﬁeople?
Lot
Thorne: No, it wa% regular college students. %HMM

J.?’ some of them may have found some of the information useful
bec;use most of the boys, certainly, were going into the ser-
vice )and some of the girls ﬁprobably would be involved in the
Red Cross and so forth. Well, anyw;a.y/(that was one of the war
things. I don't remember anything more. ;

Williams: In the war-work program with the mines depot, when you went out

- were you going out simply sort of as an advertising man or
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were you something of an admitting officer?

I-was—what I would call myself and advancei admittance offi-
cer. In other words, I was making out anform and a recom-~
mendation and sending the material back to the admittance
office. I don't know who was chairman of the admitéance

then/’, I have a feeling that Dean Lambert was in charggbu%
ge had some really good boys that came along in that program.
i’ou talked about some special projects. The other day you

were talking about the collegeﬂoak,iéa special project in-
volved in that. "

ﬂe&,.—ef—eeuz-s§>Dr. Wagner was the chairmen of special évents )
and he was a really superb administrator of that. Everything
was very proper and done in a genteel ma.nner) and one of the
things that he felt we really needed to tone up the parads -

at graduation was that the marshalgs should have a baton. They
shouldn't just go waving their hands around>and s0 somebody
said, well, the college oak has died

W‘bﬁ“ﬁ’é"éﬁ’"@"’ anders™ WW&@? (//they cut it all
down. Then,-<¢ I guess it was Dr. Wagner thought it would
be very appropriate if some huriks of the college oak were cut
out and put on the lathe and made into a baton. ¥0 he came to
me and requested me to design the batonjgé’ which T d;.d. I went
over to the library and got ﬁ}ome books out on the idorks of Sir

ten

Christopher Wrenja.nd I took a balgster ( which is bart of a
A v
balustrade) -a-Wren-balester” and just modified it a little bit,

2@ then on the end I got Carl Roseberg to take one of his little
<

-
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grinding wheels and chve a pine cone or the

hospitality symbol of th%ineapple%at the little knob at
the end. We désigned that and then,/of‘cem:se,’?they found out
that the college students over the hundreds of years and:also
the bownspeopl?//evidentl;ﬁhad put notices on this old treg,
Mhm@edw&ﬁ-»year&%%%haﬂ“ﬁisﬁedy /Ehe tree
was literally full of nails )and so they didn't dare 1/;0 run it
on the lat.he(psan@ go that fell through)but they did carve:@the
old oak ’?in’oo small pieces, mostly tiiangular pieceg{ﬁfor
desk pileces. I*V{ got two pieces of it. I have one piece
dowmstairs yand the other piece I gave to Dr. Graves. The
batons were made out of mahogany) and Mr. Tillery was able to
put them on the lathe without any trouble.
Williams: According ‘to the design of th iigina,lsz;: submitted?

Thorne: Yes, I don't know whdigevi% the ribbons on it._ You see,
there's a place at the top to have the ribbons [ the colors of
the college 'were?put on. q’fAnd then,,./cf—courm? there was a
memorial piafve./ to be put up in the Wren Build;_ng} and thefie
they thought it was appr;priate at the same time to memorialize

another group of men from/the ?lirst world war, I believe it wags

- ;9 we designed a bigj{,special
table @hich Carl Rosebe;g uses today for sculpture) which is the
right heightﬁaa&;this had to be made very sturdily because these

jes
big marble pla bhad to be put into place. -They-were-put-inte>

..
Ma&—&a&ding% I got involved with it ,but it was a matter

of approving a design. We tried to keep the design very simple.
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(R Then we also had the problem of designing the bronze pla‘c/l@ e
that was to go for informational purposes in front of the
Wren Buﬂding@pnﬁ ’%he art commission was involved m[tlf‘zu :hat N
and they insisted on it being practically a brqnzeAp}aekfwith
brick work underneath it which in a way, if-you—eeme—ings

e.\if looks a litlle bit cheap but what the dickens. They
didn't want anything te interfere again with the old
buildings)so that was the way that was done. #Then I got

involved with the signs for the law school and for the cclle g e 5&@:\5 on “the

approaches to Williamsburg, -tie

had to go instead of to the art commissio%to the historic
narkers commission (Dand—-wtgé carefully avoided any historical
troubless ,instead of sayir;g}"Eounded 1693" g we sald "Chartered
1693;’ and they approved that. And that 's why that is still
used, ‘H“Then they came to me and askedsme to design the sign
boards for all over campus, the box boards. Lambert said we
needed scmething like that so I worked those out. I had to

)
work out alloof these designs for what could be made in the col-

lege shop.—-#n other words, winexpensiveb-? ‘ard so the cen-
@ z

ter post is not a solid post; it's a hollow post. The top
of it is solid )but the post itself is made up of four boards
put together on an angle. Now the restoration onei those are

Z 4
solid posts; the edges are wmmﬁec\u{ and all that sort of
thimg)but this is a médification of one that ~-—actually,ibtt® | o

down on the Duke of Gloucester Street, near the theater. -Fouz
(seg';—the—same‘tdaa—of-a—bogg,(l don't know whether it's there
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now or not.) This is what you get involved with) }'a[irery-
body calls up. And then,of course, for years I did every
damn bit of illumination that was ever done on the campus.
I illuminated a manuscript for presentation to the presi-
dent of the University of Pennsylvania. I did another
1lluminated manuseript for presentation to King Paul of

W
Greece when %hey—we«re here and I don't know what else.

/‘
Then I did all of thesscholarships. I can't do it any
more; my eyes aren't that goodJ butuﬁ you see, this is

how you get involved with presidents. WW

,,»to«dousomem;ng.splashyymye&&mwﬁﬂmmatemthﬁigﬁ’

Who called on you the most for thisy for special progect)
would you say?

I don't know which one did it the most. (I can't remember

when King Paul and Queen Fredgriéka were here. I remember we
met them over in the gresident's ;;ousej and King Paul was a
tall, rather simple, ;zice-—lookingyman with minimum hair. She
was a vitaly little creature; she was a pepper W ) No,

I can't remember who did what .\/ Most of this illumihation was
done in the Pomfret and Chandler regimes.

There was one more special project you were involved in which
you mentioned the other day and that was the Ghinese collectiozg
Vbhe‘ﬁ'“'uiz%g»oﬁ.hh%

Oh yes, the Chinese collection. Well, that's very interesting
because that came about by a set of peculiar coincidences.

Colonial Williamsburg wanted to have a good color plate made
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of the entrance hall of the palace. Aad gver;%ne they had
made the panelling turned out to be /;trawgerry red )and it
Just isn't that; it's a nice, rich, deep brown. So, they
got in touch with a man who had done a greaﬁ dﬁal of photo~
graphy for the National Geographic, Dr. Dozie:;’of Boston who

)
was a dentist by trade. He was a photographer by avocationa

and he made a good deal out of it,.

W%@Mg%ﬁé% by going on these trips and
insisiting:that he have his experzses paid and that's all; he
didn't take money. But his expenseg;gevidently%were extra«
ordinary psd-he was down here taking these pﬁ;’éturei ’and some~
where along tt:e line he met Carl Bridenbaugh,who was the
director of the /%nstitute) and-Gar
personsble,and-Dozier.equally-soy-began-to-talle-and-earry—=%.
Omoﬂw‘&.umswﬁn“B%%Ws*mm"wg%? /énd the next

thing you know Dozier says, "Well, you know, Williamsburg
might be the place for this collection I know of." "What
collection?" says Carl. And he says, "A collection of fabulous
Chinese objects, art objects. Wouldn't the College of Wil~
liam and Mafy be interested in them?" And so Carl gave the
information to President Pomi‘ret) and President Pomfret called
me in and next thing we knew we were in correspondence with &

)
Mrs. Aberdein. Well, by the time we really got into correspon-
o he e
dence with her she4 married g 1a.wyer> who was Mr. Pickford. She
was a youngster of seventy-eight or seventy~-nine and he was

about seventy~four or ~five )and she married him because she was



